
Adopted:  June 13, 2024 – As Written 

 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD  

 
MINUTES 

 
MAY 23, 2024 

 
  
 PAGES 
 
  1  Appointment of Alternate Member 
 
  1  Public Hearing – Proposed Amendments to Site Plan  
    Review Regulations 

• §110-4.B. – Minor Site Plan Review – Adopted 

• §110-29.B. – Greenspace – continued until June 27, 
2024 

 
  2  Work Session 

• Commercial Development/Hotel and Motel discussion 
     
  3  Other Business 

• Ted C. Hounsell – Lot Merger (PID 277-187 & 188) 

• HOP Grant Committee Update 

• Selectmen’s Report  

• Issues for Consideration 

• Media Questions 



Adopted: June 13, 2024 – As Written 

Page 1 of 4 
 

CONWAY PLANNING BOARD 
 

MINUTES 
 

MAY 23, 2024 
 
 
A meeting of the Conway Planning Board was held on Thursday, May 23, 2024, beginning at 6:01 
p.m. at the Conway Town Office, Conway, NH. Those present were: Chair, Benjamin Colbath; 
Selectmen’s Representative, Steven Porter; Vice Chair, Ailie Byers; Secretary, Erik Corbett; Eliza 
Grant; Ted Phillips; Alternate, Nat Lucy; Town Planner, Ryan O’Connor; and Assistant Planner, 
Holly Whitelaw.  
 
APPOINTMENT OF ALTERNATE MEMBER 
 
Chair Colbath appointed Nat Lucy as a voting member for Bill Barbin.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SITE PLAN REVIEW 
REGULATIONS 
 
§110-4.B. – Minor Site Plan Review: The purpose of this amendment is to allow for Minor Site 
Plan Review of projects which propose no greater than 5 residential units, decrease greenspace of 
less than 10,000 square feet, increase structural floor area of no more than 35%, lot-line 
adjustments, and changes-of-use which may require a waiver from Site Plan Regulations. 
 
Mr. O'Connor reviewed the amendment and explained how it would be implemented.  
 
Chair Colbath asked for Board comment; there was none.  
 
Chair Colbath opened the public hearing at 6:03 pm. There was no public comment.  
 
Chair Colbath closed the public hearing at 6:04 pm. 
 
Mr. Porter made a motion, seconded by Mr. Corbett, to adopt the amendments to §110-4.B. 
– Minor Site Plan Review as written. Motion carried 6-0-1, with Mr. Lucy abstaining. 
 
Chair Colbath and Mr. Porter volunteered to participate on the technical review committee, with 
Ms. Byers serving as the backup.  
 
§110-29.B. – Greenspace: The purpose of this amendment is to increase the percentage of 
greenspace from 30% to 40% of the total lot area. 
 
Mr. O'Connor reviewed the amendment. He asked the Board to consider if this would make sense 
in every zone and if there would be unintended consequences.  
 
Chair Colbath asked for Board comment. 
 



Adopted: June 13, 2024 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – MAY 23, 2024 

Page 2 of 4 
 

The Board discussed the impact this might have on the Villages, but noted they are pretty much 
grandfathered. They said the concern was primarily with new development. They agreed they did 
not want to limit businesses on smaller lots. They agreed they should hold the Village districts to 
a different standard than the commercial districts on the strip to protect their integrity.  
 
Mr. O'Connor noted the percentage of greenspace could be based on structure size.  
 
In response to a question from Ms. Grant, they discussed why the industrial district had been carved 
out.  
 
The Board discussed if they want to offer a reduction in greenspace for long-term housing as a 
bonus and decided not to do this.  
 
Mr. O'Connor will make the changes as discussed and bring the amendment back to the Board for 
a vote on June 27, 2024.  
 
Ms. Grant made a motion, seconded by Mr. Porter, to continue the public hearing for §110-
29.B. – Greenspace until June 27, 2024. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
WORK SESSION  
 
Commercial Development/Hotel and Motel discussion: 
 
Mr. O'Connor explained that funds were awarded to the Town to rewrite the zoning ordinance. 
This process should begin later this summer.  
 
The Board discussed the protections that should be put into place until this process is complete, 
which could be by the 2026 Town Meeting. They discussed increasing the vegetative buffer 
based on the size of a building, which would also address the setback issue, and agreed to 
implement this.  
 
They discussed how the Village districts should be handled and suggested addressing them as a 
whole at a later date. 
 
Mr. O'Connor will revise the landscaping section as a whole and send it to the Board for review.   
 
Mr. O'Connor asked if the Board wanted to consider rezoning the central highway commercial 
area as the commercial core. He noted the Board needs to determine what the future zones are 
going to be, as they are mixed-use spaces. The Board discussed pulling in zone boundaries. 
 
They discussed what type of businesses would be allowed in the commercial core and the 
highway commercial district, including hotels. Mr. O'Connor noted they can determine the 
maximum square footage in the various zones. They discussed a warrant article creating the 
commercial core and what it would include. They discussed considering both sides of Route 16 
differently.  
 



Adopted: June 13, 2024 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – MAY 23, 2024 

Page 3 of 4 
 

After much discussion, Mr. O'Connor clarified they will limit hotels to a specific area and look at 
what square footage is appropriate for the northern section of the highway commercial district. 
He said these will be achievable this year and would provide the necessary protections while the 
zoning ordinance is being rewritten.  
 
Mr. O'Connor noted there are 11 types of transient occupancy in the Table of Uses. He suggested 
how this could be simplified.  
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Ted C. Hounsell – Lot Merger (PID 277-187 & 188):  
 
Mr. O'Connor explained this merger will make a non-conforming lot conforming.  
 
Mr. Porter made a motion, seconded by Ms. Grant, to approve the lot merger for Ted C. 
Hounsell to merge PID 277-187 & 188 into one lot of record. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
HOP Grant Committee Update:  
 
Mr. O'Connor reported the HOP Grant Committee is taking on the mixed-use issue as part of the 
housing discussion and will help to develop language around this. The next meeting will occur 
the week of June 11th.  
 
Selectmen’s Report:  
  
Mr. Porter said he should have something to report after the next Selectboard meeting.  
 
Issues for Consideration:  
  
Mr. Corbett asked if there will be a Planning Board member on the new Life/Safety Committee. 
Mr. Porter does not believe this is a Planning purview. He said the committee is being formed in 
response to the Town and the Fire Department renegotiating the ambulance contract. 
 
Mr. Porter asked if the Board could entertain a form of moratorium to preserve/prohibit future 
commercial development in the northern commercial corridor. Mr. O'Connor will study what the 
justification would be for this.  
 
Ms. Grant read a letter in support of the Town's pre-applications for the 2024 Clean Water State 
Revolving Fund and asked the Board if they would be willing to sign it. The Board discussed the 
projects that would be funded with these funds and agreed they would sign the letter. 
 
Ms. Byers asked if members can attend meetings remotely. There are State regulations that allow 
remote participation; however, the member cannot be counted as part of the quorum. The Board 
discussed this option and decided that members could attend work sessions remotely, but not 
regular meetings. They also agreed that only one member could attend remotely at a time.  
 



Adopted: June 13, 2024 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – MAY 23, 2024 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Chair Colbath made a motion, seconded by Mr. Corbett, to allow one member at a time to 
remotely attend work sessions, but not regular meetings, no more than four times a year. 
Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Chair Colbath asked if a Planning Board member should be on the Conservation Commission. Mr. 
Lucy said he did not feel this was necessary; he volunteered as an alternate to the Planning Board 
to facilitate communication between the two groups.  
 
Media Questions: 
 
Tom Eastman of Conway Daily Sun welcomed Mr. Lucy as an alternate to the Planning Board.  
 
He asked if the 40% greenspace requirement would decrease the number of housing units that 
could be built at Ridgeline. Mr. O'Connor said the density of the project was previously approved 
by the Board. They are allowed to make amendments to that plan, as long as they are not vastly 
different. Ms. Byers said there was already over 40% greenspace in this project.  
 
Mr. Eastman asked, with the new zones, how the Board would control growth in other parts of 
town, if it is limited on Route 16. He also asked what the Master Plan will do concerning the 
transfer of growth. The Board explained that one of the goals of the Master Plan is to prevent other 
areas from being overdeveloped.  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:50 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
Beth Hanggeli 
  




























